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within the workplace by a barrier ap-
propriate to the potential hazard of 
such wood particles or flying debris or 
by maintaining a sufficient distance 
from machinery in operation. For the 
exemption to apply, the youth must 
also be required to use personal protec-
tive equipment to prevent exposure to 
excessive levels of noise and sawdust. 

[75 FR 28460, May 20, 2010] 

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 75 FR 28460, May 
20, 2010, § 570.130 was added, effective July 19, 
2010. 

ENFORCEMENT 

§ 570.140 General. 
(a) Section 15(a)(4) of the Act makes 

any violation of the provisions of sec-
tions 12(a) or 12(c) unlawful. Any such 
unlawful act or practice may be en-
joined by the United States District 
Courts under section 17 upon court ac-
tion, filed by the Secretary pursuant to 
section 12(b) and, if willful will subject 
the offender to the criminal penalties 
provided in section 16(a) of the Act. 
Section 16(a) provides that any person 
who willfully violates any of the provi-
sions of section 15 shall upon convic-
tion thereof be subject to a fine of not 
more than $10,000, or to imprisonment 
for not more than six months, or both. 
No person shall be imprisoned under 
this subsection except for an offense 
committed after the conviction of such 
person for a prior offense under this 
subsection. 

(b) In addition, FLSA section 16(e) 
states that any person who violates the 
provisions of FLSA sections 12 or 13(c), 
relating to child labor, or any regula-
tions issued under those sections, shall 
be subject to a civil penalty, not to ex-
ceed: 

(1) $11,000, for each employee who was 
the subject of such a violation; or 

(2) $50,000 with regard to each such 
violation that causes the death or seri-
ous injury of any employee under the 
age of 18 years, which penalty may be 
doubled where the violation is repeated 
or willful. 

(c) Part 579 of this chapter, Child 
Labor Violations—Civil Money Penalties, 
provides for the issuance of the notice 
of civil money penalties for any viola-
tion of FLSA sections 12 or 13(c) relat-
ing to child labor. Part 580 of this chap-

ter, Civil Money Penalties—Procedures 
for Assessing and Contesting Penalties, 
describes the administrative process 
for assessment and resolution of the 
civil money penalties. When a civil 
money penalty is assessed against an 
employer for a child labor violation, 
the employer has the right, within 15 
days after receipt of the notice of such 
penalty, to file an exception to the de-
termination that the violation or vio-
lations occurred. When such an excep-
tion is filed with the office making the 
assessment, the matter is referred to 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
and a formal hearing is scheduled. At 
such a hearing, the employer or an at-
torney retained by the employer may 
present such witnesses, introduce such 
evidence and establish such facts as the 
employer believes will support the ex-
ception. The determination of the 
amount of any civil money penalty be-
comes final if no exception is taken to 
the administrative assessment thereof, 
or if no exception is filed to the deci-
sion and order of the administrative 
law judge. 

[75 FR 28460, May 20, 2010] 

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 75 FR 28460, May 
20, 2010, an undesignated center heading and 
§ 570.140 were added, effective July 19, 2010. 

PART 575—WAIVER OF CHILD 
LABOR PROVISIONS FOR AGRI-
CULTURAL EMPLOYMENT OF 10 
AND 11 YEAR OLD MINORS IN 
HAND HARVESTING OF SHORT 
SEASON CROPS 

Sec. 
575.1 Purpose and scope. 
575.2 Definitions. 
575.3 Application for waiver. 
575.4 Information to be included in applica-

tion. 
575.5 Supporting data to accompany appli-

cation. 
575.6 Procedure for action on an applica-

tion. 
575.7 Statutory conditions for employment 

under the waiver. 
575.8 Secretary’s conditions for employment 

under the waiver. 
575.9 Failure to comply with terms and con-

ditions of the waiver. 

AUTHORITY: Secs. 11, 12, 13, 18, 52 Stat. 1067, 
1069, as amended; 29 U.S.C. 211, 212, 213, 218; 
Secretary of Labor’s Order No. 16–75, 40 FR 
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55913; Employment Standards Order No. 2–75, 
40 FR 56743. 

SOURCE: 43 FR 26562, June 21, 1978, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 575.1 Purpose and scope. 
(a) Section 13(c)(4) was added to the 

Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as 
amended, by the Fair Labor Standards 
Amendments of 1977. This section pro-
vides that: 

(A) An employer or group of employers 
may apply to the Secretary for a waiver of 
the application of section 12 to the employ-
ment for not more than 8 weeks in any cal-
endar year of individuals who are less than 
12 years of age, but not less than 10 years of 
age, as hand harvest laborers in an agricul-
tural operation which has been, and is cus-
tomarily and generally recognized as being, 
paid on a piece rate basis in the region in 
which such individuals would be employed. 
The Secretary may not grant such a waiver 
unless he finds, based on objective data sub-
mitted by the applicant, that: 

(i) The crop to be harvested is one with a 
particularly short harvesting season and the 
application of section 12 would cause severe 
economic disruption in the industry of the 
employer or group of employers applying for 
the waiver; 

(ii) The employment of the individuals to 
whom the waiver would apply would not be 
deleterious to their health or well-being; 

(iii) The level and type of pesticides and 
other chemicals used would not have an ad-
verse effect on the health or well-being of 
the individuals to whom the waiver would 
apply; 

(iv) Individuals age 12 and above are not 
available for such employment; and 

(v) The industry of such employer or group 
of employers has traditionally and substan-
tially employed individuals under 12 years of 
age without displacing substantial job oppor-
tunities for individuals over 16 years of age. 

(B) Any waiver granted by the Secretary 
under subparagraph (A) shall require that: 

(i) The individuals employed under such 
waiver be employed outside of school hours 
for the school district where they are living 
while so employed; 

(ii) Such individuals while so employed 
commute daily from their permanent resi-
dence to the farm on which they are so em-
ployed; and 

(iii) Such individuals be employed under 
such waiver (I) for not more than 8 weeks be-
tween June 1 and October 15 of any calendar 
year, and (II) in accordance with such other 
terms and conditions as the Secretary shall 
prescribe for such individuals’ protection. 

(b) The child labor provisions of the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, section 12, 

require the following age standards for 
employment in agriculture: 

(1) 16 years of age in any occupation 
at any time; 

(2) 14 and 15 years of age outside of 
school hours except in occupations 
found and declared by the Secretary to 
be particularly hazardous for the em-
ployment of minors under 16 years of 
age (subpart E–1, 29 CFR 570.70, et seq.); 

(3) 12 and 13 years of age in nonhaz-
ardous occupations outside of school 
hours if: 

(i) Such employment is with the 
written consent of a parent or person 
standing in the place of a parent of 
such minor, or 

(ii) Such employment is on the same 
farm where such parent or person is 
also employed; 

(4) Under 12 years of age in nonhaz-
ardous occupations outside of school 
hours if such employment is with the 
written consent of a parent or person 
standing in place of a parent of such 
minor, on a farm where, because of the 
provisions of section 13(a)(6)(A) of the 
Act, none of the employees are re-
quired to be paid at the wage rate pre-
scribed by section 6(a)(5) of the Act; 

(5) 10 and 11 years of age in nonhaz-
ardous occupations outside of school 
hours employed to hand-harvest short 
season crop or crops under a waiver 
issued pursuant to section 13(c)(4) of 
the Act and this part: 

(6) Minors of any age may be em-
ployed by their parents or persons 
standing in place of their parents at 
any time in any occupation on a farm 
owned or operated by their parents or 
persons standing in place of their par-
ents. 

(c) This part provides the procedures 
to be used under section 13(c)(4) of the 
Act. This part describes the informa-
tion and defines the supporting data 
that the employer or group of employ-
ers must submit when applying for a 
waiver of the child labor provisions for 
the employment of 10 and 11 year old 
minors as hand-harvest laborers in an 
agricultural operation. It further ex-
plains the specific requirements im-
posed by the statute for employment 
under a waiver and specifies the condi-
tions prescribed by the Secretary for 
employment under a waiver. 
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§ 575.2 Definitions. 
As used in this part: 
Act means the Fair Labor Standards 

Act of 1938, as amended (52 Stat. 1060, 
as amended; 29 U.S.C. 201, et seq.). 

Administrator means the Adminis-
trator of the Wage and Hour Division, 
Employment Standards Administra-
tion, U.S. Department of Labor, and in-
cludes an authorized representative 
designated by the Administrator to 
perform any of the functions of the Ad-
ministrator under this part. 

Agriculture means agriculture as de-
fined in section 3(f) of the Act and as 
interpreted in part 780 of this chapter. 

Commute daily means the minors 
shall travel by foot, car, or other vehi-
cle designed for transporting pas-
sengers from their permanent resi-
dences to the field or farm where they 
will work and return thereto at the end 
of each workday. 

Department means the U.S. Depart-
ment of Labor. 

Employer means employer as defined 
in section 3(d) of the Act. 

Group of employers means a number of 
employers who seek to be considered 
together for the purpose of applying for 
a waiver under section 13(c)(4) of the 
Act. 

Hand-harvest laborers means agricul-
tural workers engaged solely in har-
vesting by hand soil grown crops such 
as but not limited to berries, potatoes, 
and beans, and as interpreted in 
§ 780.312 of this chapter. 

Outside school hours means such peri-
ods as determined by the school dis-
trict of the minor’s permanent resi-
dence. These periods include before or 
after school hours, holidays, summer 
vacation, Saturdays, Sundays, or any 
other days on which the school for the 
school district does not assemble. 

Permanent residence means the place 
where the minor and the minor’s par-
ent or person standing in place of a 
parent reside year-round. 

Secretary means the Secretary of 
Labor, United States Department of 
Labor, or an authorized representative 
of the Secretary. 

Waiver means a letter signed by the 
Administrator advising the named em-
ployer or group of employers that 10 
and 11 year old minors may be em-
ployed in the hand-harvesting of the 

specified short season crop or crops for 
the period designated, in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth 
in section 13(c)(4) of the Act and this 
part. 

[43 FR 26562, June 21, 1978; 43 FR 28471, June 
30, 1978] 

§ 575.3 Application for waiver. 
(a) An application for a waiver shall 

be filed with the Administrator of the 
Wage and Hour Division, Employment 
Standards Administration, United 
States Department of Labor, Wash-
ington, DC 20210. To permit adequate 
time for processing, it is recommended 
that such applications be filed 6 weeks 
prior to the period the waiver is to be 
in effect. 

(b) No particular form is prescribed. 
The application, which may be in letter 
form, shall be typewritten or clearly 
written and shall include the following 
information: 

(1) The general information as de-
scribed in § 575.4 of this part: 

(i) Name and address of employer or 
group of employers; 

(ii) Telephone number; 
(iii) Location of farm(s); 
(iv) Crop or crops to be hand har-

vested; 
(v) Whether payment is customarily 

paid on a piece rate basis; 
(vi) Requested period of waiver; 
(vii) Statement that such employ-

ment shall be outside school hours; 
(2) The objective data as required in 

§ 575.5 of this part to show that: 
(i) The crops have a short harvesting 

season; 
(ii) Without 10 and 11 year olds the 

industry would suffer severe economic 
disruption; 

(iii) Employment will not be delete-
rious to the health and well-being of 10 
and 11 year olds; 

(iv) The level of pesticides will not 
adversely affect 10 and 11 year olds; 

(v) Individuals 12 years and over are 
not available for employment; 

(vi) Employer or group of employers 
has traditionally used minors under 12 
years and this will not displace em-
ployees 16 years or older. 

(c) The application shall be signed 
and dated by the employer or group of 
employers requesting the waiver or by 
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the authorized representative of such 
employer or group. 

(Approved by the Office of Management and 
Budget under control number 1215–0120) 

[43 FR 26562, June 21, 1978, as amended at 47 
FR 145, Jan. 5, 1982] 

§ 575.4 Information to be included in 
application. 

An application for a waiver pursuant 
to section 13(c)(4) of the Act shall con-
tain the following information: 

(a) The name, address, and zip code of 
the employer, or each employer of a 
group of employers, and the authorized 
representative, if any, of an employer 
or group. 

(b) The telephone number and area 
code for any employer or authorized 
representative from whom additional 
information concerning the application 
may be obtained. 

(c) The address, location, and/or area 
(State, county, and/or other geographic 
designation), clearly identifying each 
employer’s farm(s) or field(s) where 10 
and 11 year old hand-harvest laborers 
are to be employed. 

(d) The specific crop or crops to be 
hand-harvested at each designated 
farm or field. 

(e) Substantiation of the claim that 
such agricultural operation ‘‘is cus-
tomarily and generally recognized as 
being paid on a piece rate basis in the 
region in which such individuals would 
be employed.’’ The Administrator will 
accept signed statements to that effect 
from agricultural employers and em-
ployees and others, such as agricul-
tural extension agents, in the region of 
employment who are familiar with 
farming operations and practices in the 
region and with the method of com-
pensation used in such operations and 
practices. 

(f) Designated dates of not more than 
8 weeks an any calendar year, between 
June 1 and October 15, during which it 
is anticipated that 10 and 11 year old 
minors will be employed in the hand- 
harvesting of the specified short season 
crop or crops. 

(g) A statement that the 10- and 11- 
year old hand harvesters will be em-
ployed outside school hours. 

§ 575.5 Supporting data to accompany 
application. 

Objective data, as required by section 
13(c)(4) of the Act, shall also be sub-
mitted by the employer or group of em-
ployers applying for a waiver, to show 
that: 

(a) The crop to be harvested is one 
with a ‘‘particularly short harvesting 
season.’’ The variety of each crop to be 
harvested must ordinarily be harvested 
within 4 weeks in the region in which 
the waiver will be applicable. The Ad-
ministrator will accept the written 
statement to that effect from the agri-
cultural extension agent for the coun-
ty. 

(b) The 12-year minimum age pre-
scribed by the Act for such employ-
ment would cause ‘‘severe economic 
disruption in the industry of the em-
ployer or group of employers applying 
for the waiver.’’ Severe economic dis-
ruption in the industry refers to the 
consequences of not meeting a compel-
ling need for the employment of 10- and 
11-year olds to avoid loss of a signifi-
cant portion of the crop. Evidence of 
this need includes the projected num-
ber of laborers needed to harvest the 
acreage planted and evidence that re-
cruitment requirements specified in 
paragraph (e) of this section have been 
complied with. Data concerning the 
number of hand harvest laborers used 
in previous years for given acreages 
will serve as a basis for evaluating 
needs for the current year. If the req-
uisite number of workers cannot be re-
cruited from the labor supply of 12 
years and above, this would ordinarily 
demonstrate the compelling need for 
the employment of 10 and 11 year olds. 

(c) The employment of minors under 
the waiver ‘‘would not be deleterious to 
their health or well-being.’’ This refers 
to the prospective effect on the health 
or well-being generally (i.e., other than 
the tolerance level of pesticides or 
other chemicals) of 10 and 11 year-old 
hand harvesters. The Administrator 
will accept signed statements to that 
effect from doctors, or nurses or public 
health officials in the region. 

(d) The ‘‘level and type of pesticides 
and other chemicals used would not 
have an adverse effect on the health or 
well-being of’’ minors employed under 
the waiver. The safe reentry standards 
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established by the Environmental Pro-
tection Agency, and followed by other 
Federal and State agencies, were estab-
lished for adult workers and have not 
been shown to be safe for 10 and 11 year 
olds. Therefore, the applicant, in order 
to satisfy this condition, will either 
have to submit a statement that no 
pesticides or other chemicals were used 
on the crop to be harvested or submit 
data which upon study by the Sec-
retary or the Secretary’s designee es-
tablishes a safe reentry times for 10 
and 11 year olds. If such data, or addi-
tional studies conducted by the Sec-
retary or the Secretary’s designee, es-
tablish safe reentry standards for 10 
and 11 year olds, this section will be 
amended to include such standards and 
the applicant will then need only iden-
tify the type and level of pesticides or 
chemicals used and the date of last ap-
plication of same prior to harvest. 

(e) Individuals age 12 and above are 
not available for such employment. 
Evidence of such unavailability must 
be documented by the applicant by: 

(1) Placement of intrastate and inter-
state job orders, in which the piece 
rate is specified, with the state em-
ployment service sufficiently in ad-
vance of the harvest to allow reason-
able time for the recruitment of local 
and migrant workers. An interstate 
order need not be placed if the appli-
cant can demonstrate that suitable 
housing is not available. 

(2) Placement of at least two adver-
tisements in local papers of general 
circulation or advertisements over 
local radio stations. 

(3) Contact with farm labor contrac-
tors, migrant workers, and other po-
tential workers. 

(4) Contact with schools, business 
and labor organizations, non-profit or-
ganizations and public agencies to en-
list their help. Data showing the re-
sponses received to these solicitations 
must be categorized by age and sub-
mitted with the waiver application to 
verify that older workers are not avail-
able to perform the work. 

(f) The ‘‘industry of such employer or 
groups of employers has traditionally 
and substantially employed individuals 
under twelve years of age without dis-
placing substantial job opportunities 
for individuals over sixteen years of 

age.’’ Documentation that the industry 
has traditionally and substantially em-
ployed individuals under 12 years of age 
may include newspaper reports, maga-
zine articles, research organization re-
ports, or other appropriate sources. 
Data to indicate that such employment 
did not displace substantial job oppor-
tunities for individuals over 16 years of 
age may include the signed statement 
of an appropriate official of the em-
ployment service agency of the State 
(or States, if region designated crosses 
State lines) certifying to that fact. 
This certification must be based on 
statistical documentation for at least 
the previous year. 

(g) When supporting data required by 
this section are submitted by an em-
ployer or group of employers, the ob-
jective data required by paragraph (d) 
of this section shall be submitted on 
the basis of each individual employer. 
However, objective data required by 
paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (e), and (f) of 
this section may be submitted for the 
specific geographic area, e.g., an entire 
county, of the employer or group of 
employers. 

[43 FR 26562, June 21, 1978; 43 FR 28471, June 
30, 1978, as amended at 44 FR 22061, Apr. 13, 
1979; 44 FR 24059, Apr. 24, 1979; 44 FR 29049, 
May 18, 1979; 45 FR 55177, Aug. 19, 1980] 

§ 575.6 Procedure for action on an ap-
plication. 

(a) Upon receipt of an application for 
a waiver, the Administrator shall re-
view all of the information and sup-
porting data. If sufficient, the Adminis-
trator shall grant a waiver; if insuffi-
cient, the Administrator may seek fur-
ther information. If such information 
is not made available to the Adminis-
trator, the Administrator shall deny 
the waiver. 

(b) The Administrator shall deny the 
application for a waiver from any em-
ployer against whom a final civil 
money penalty is outstanding under 
section 16(e) of the Act for violation of 
the child labor provisions of the Act. 

(c) The waiver, in the form of a letter 
signed by the Administrator, shall set 
forth the terms and conditions for em-
ployment under the waiver as provided 
in §§ 575.7 and 575.8. The waiver shall be 
issued to the employer or group of em-
ployers applying for it. 
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(d) If a waiver is granted there will be 
published in the FEDERAL REGISTER a 
general notice to that effect setting 
forth for each waiver granted: the 
name of the employer or the name of 
each employer of a group of employers; 
the address of each such employer, in-
cluding city, state, and zip code; and 
the dates of the period the waiver will 
be in effect. 

(e) If a waiver is denied, the Adminis-
trator shall give written notice of such 
denial to the employer or group of em-
ployers applying for a waiver. Such de-
nial will be without prejudice to the 
filing of any subsequent application. 

§ 575.7 Statutory conditions for em-
ployment under the waiver. 

Any waiver granted pursuant to sec-
tion 13(c)(4) of the Act and this part 
shall require that: 

(a) Employment of 10 and 11 year old 
minors pursuant to the waiver be out-
side school hours. 

(b) Individuals employed commute 
daily from their permanent residence 
to the farms(s) or field(s) where em-
ployed. 

(c) Such individuals be employed for 
not more than 8 weeks between June 1 
and October 15 of any calendar year. 
When schools are in session, any em-
ployment under a waiver shall be con-
fined to outside of school hours. 

§ 575.8 Secretary’s conditions for em-
ployment under the waiver. 

The Secretary prescribes the fol-
lowing terms and conditions for the 
protection of minors employed pursu-
ant to a waiver granted under section 
13(c)(4) of the Act: 

(a) An employer or group of employ-
ers granted such a waiver shall obtain 
and keep on file a signed statement of 
the parent or person standing in the 
place of the parent of each 10 and 11- 
year old minor employed consenting to 
the employment of such minor under 
the waiver. 

(b) Any employment pursuant to a 
waiver shall be in compliance with ap-
plicable Federal and State laws, and 
any regulations issued under them. 

(c) No employer or group of employ-
ers shall employ any 10 or 11 year old 
minor pursuant to a waiver for more 
than 5 hours in any one day or for more 

than 30 hours in any workweek with a 
meal break of at least 30 minutes and 
two rest breaks of at least 15 minutes 
each. 

(d) An employer or group of employ-
ers granted such a waiver shall provide 
immediately adjacent to the field(s) to 
be hand harvested: (1) Adequate sani-
tary facilities, such as portable toilets; 
(2) adequate and clean drinking water 
in covered containers with spouts, and 
an adequate supply of paper or plastic 
cups for individual drinking use; and 
(3) a specified adult employee, who is 
appropriately equipped and is knowl-
edgeable about first-aid treatment and 
readily available to give such treat-
ment when needed. 

(e) An employer or group of employ-
ers granted such a waiver shall provide 
emergency transportation either to the 
minor’s permanent residence or to the 
nearest hospital for any 10 or 11 year 
old hand harvester who becomes ill or 
is injured during the normal hours of 
employment. 

(f) No 10 or 11 year old employed 
under a waiver shall ride upon or be 
employed in the operation of or in the 
close proximity to any power driven 
machinery or equipment. Generally, a 
distance of fifty feet or more will be 
construed to meet the requirement 
that employment not be in ‘‘close prox-
imity’’ to machinery or equipment. 

(g) An employer or group of employ-
ers granted such a waiver who owns, 
operates, or causes to be operated any 
vehicle for the transportation of such 
minors shall be responsible for assuring 
that: 

(1) Every such vehicle is in compli-
ance with all applicable Federal and 
State safety and health standards and 
with the rules and regulations issued 
by the Bureau of Motor Carrier Safety, 
Federal Highway Administration of the 
U.S. Department of Transportation; 

(2) Every such vehicle be designed for 
transporting passengers and be oper-
ated by a lawfully licensed driver; and 

(3) A vehicle liability insurance pol-
icy provides insurance in an amount 
not less than the amounts applicable to 
vehicles used in the transportation of 
passengers under the Interstate Com-
merce Act and its regulations. These 
amounts currently are as follows: 
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INSURANCE REQUIRED FOR PASSENGER 
EQUIPMENT 

12 or less 
pas-

sengers 

More than 
12 pas-
sengers 

Limit for bodily injuries to or death 
of 1 person ................................. $100,000 $100,000 

Limit for bodily injuries to or death 
of all persons injured or killed in 
any 1 accident (subject to a 
maximum of $100,000 for bodily 
injuries to or death of 1 person) 300,000 500,000 

Limit for loss or damage in any 1 
accident to property of others 
(excluding cargo) ....................... 50,000 50,000 

(h) A copy of the waiver shall be 
posted or readily available at the site 
or sites of such employment of such 
minors during the entire period. 

(i) The employer or group of employ-
ers shall maintain and preserve a 
record of the name, address, and occu-
pation of each minor employed under 
the waiver in accordance with 
§ 516.33(b) of this chapter. In addition, 
the record shall also include the date of 
birth, the name and address of the 
school in which the minor is enrolled, 
and the number of hours worked each 
day and each week of the designated 
period. Each employer required to 
maintain records under this part shall 
preserve them for a period of at least 2 
years. 

(j) A waiver shall be effective for the 
period designated therein with no pro-
vision for amendment 

[43 FR 26562, June 21, 1978; 43 FR 28471, June 
30, 1978] 

§ 575.9 Failure to comply with the 
terms and conditions of the waiver. 

If the employer or group of employ-
ers granted a waiver pursuant to sec-
tion 13(c)(4) of the Act and this part do 
not comply with the terms and condi-
tions set forth in the waiver and this 
part, the waiver shall be null and void 
and the employer or group of employ-
ers will be subject to civil money pen-
alties under section 16(e) of the Act. 

PART 578—MINIMUM WAGE AND 
OVERTIME VIOLATIONS—CIVIL 
MONEY PENALTIES 

Sec. 
578.1 What does this part cover? 
578.2 Definitions. 

578.3 What types of violations may result in 
a penalty being assessed? 

578.4 Determination of penalty. 

AUTHORITY: Sec. 9, Pub. L. 101–157, 103 Stat. 
938, sec. 3103, Pub. L. 101–508, 104 Stat. 1388– 
29 (29 U.S.C. 216(e)), Pub. L. 101–410, 104 Stat. 
890 (28 U.S.C. 2461 note), as amended by Pub. 
L. 104–134, section 31001(s), 110 Stat. 1321–358, 
1321–373. 

SOURCE: 57 FR 49129, Oct. 29, 1992, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 578.1 What does this part cover? 

Section 9 of the Fair Labor Stand-
ards Amendments of 1989 amended sec-
tion 16(e) of the Act to provide that 
any person who repeatedly or willfully 
violates the minimum wage (section 6) 
or overtime provisions (section 7) of 
the Act shall be subject to a civil 
money penalty not to exceed $1,000 for 
each such violation. The Federal Civil 
Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 
1990 (Pub. L. 101–410), as amended by 
the Debt Collection Improvement Act 
of 1996 (Pub. L. 104–134, section 
31001(s)), requires that inflationary ad-
justments be periodically made in 
these civil money penalties according 
to a specified cost-of-living formula. 
This part defines terms necessary for 
administration of the civil money pen-
alty provisions, describes the viola-
tions for which a penalty may be im-
posed, and describes criteria for deter-
mining the amount of penalty to be as-
sessed. The procedural requirements 
for assessing and contesting such pen-
alties are contained in 29 CFR part 580. 

[66 FR 63503, Dec. 7, 2001] 

§ 578.2 Definitions. 

(a) Act means the Fair Labor Stand-
ards Act of 1938, as amended (52 Stat. 
1060 (29 U.S.C. 201 et seq.)); 

(b) Administrator means the Adminis-
trator of the Wage and Hour Division, 
Employment Standards Administra-
tion, U.S. Department of Labor, and in-
cludes any official of the Wage and 
Hour Division who is authorized by the 
Administrator to perform any of the 
functions of the Administrator under 
this part. 

(c) Person includes any individual, 
partnership, corporation, association, 
business trust, legal representative, or 
organized group of persons. 
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